SID J JAHITE

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

94-4801/10

THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

CASE NO. 84,413

SECOND DCA CASE NO.: 94-1017

L.T. CASE NO.: 92-7197, DIV. H

Fla Bar No.: 0541877

RUDOLPH ACOSTA, M.D.,

Petitioner,

vs.

NANCY RICHTER and GARY RICHTER, husband and wife,

Respondents.

PETITIONER, RUDOLPH ACOSTA, M.D.'S AMENDED JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

STEPHENS, LYNN, KLEIN & McNICHOLAS, P.A. Attorneys for Defendant(s) 9130 S. Dadeland Blvd., PH2 Two Datran Center Miami, Florida 33156 Telephone: (305) 670-3700

By: PHILIP D. PARRISH, ESQ.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The statement of the case and facts, as gleaned from the District Court's Opinion, is as follows: Nancy and Gary Richter (Plaintiffs/Respondents) filed a medical malpractice action against Frank J. Bagala M.D. and Rudolph Acosta, M.D. (Petitioner).

As discovery progressed, the Petitioner Acosta moved the trial court for an order approving ex parte conferences between his counsel and the Plaintiff's treating non-party health care providers. Dr. Bagala joined in this motion.

After a hearing held upon appropriate notice the court granted the motion and issued an order which allowed the Defendant's attorney to have ex parte "general medical discussions" with the treating physicians. The order expressly prohibited the attorneys from discussing the specific medical condition of the Plaintiff with those doctors. In essence, the trial court followed the letter of Section 455.241(2), Florida Statutes (1993), by prohibiting the defense attorneys from discussing the Plaintiff's specific medical condition with the physicians who had treated the Plaintiff.

The Richters petitioned the Second District Court of Appeal for a writ of certiorari to quash the trial court's order. The District Court accepted jurisdiction, 19 FLW D1817, (Fla. 2d DCA, August 24, 1994); (Exhibit "A") and quashed the trial court's order.

Because none of the statutorily specified waivers of the "physician patient privilege" which are set forth in Section

455.241(2) were present, the District Court quashed the order. The court rejected our contention that the order does not violate the statute because it specifically prohibits defense counsel from discussing the Plaintiff's medical condition with the Plaintiff's physicians.

The Second District Court of Appeal recognized that the trial court had relied upon the Third District Court of Appeal's decision in JOHNSON v. MT. SINAI MED. CTR., INC., 615 So.2d 257 (Fla. 3d DCA 1993). The District Court also specifically recognized that in JOHNSON the Third District had approved an order which prohibited the attorneys from discussing the patient's medical condition with the treating physicians. (Slip Op. at Page 4).

The Second District thereafter rejected the **JOHNSON** holding as follows:

It [JOHNSON] went further, however, and in essence only authorized a one interview between defense counsel and the physicians in which the doctors basically were required to remain silent and the defense counsel were to do the talking. We see no reason to require treating physicians to listen and not respond to an attorney, who is not their attorney, about their professional responsibilities. Furthermore, to the extent that the court in JOHNSON approves an ex parte, unsupervised, interview with treating physicians where the patient's attorney cannot protect against present to οf privileged disclosure information, we disagree with the decision. We, instead, agree with our sister court's decision in KIRKLAND and FRANKLIN. (Slip Op at. Page 4-5).

Thereafter, Dr. Acosta filed a notice to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This District Court's opinion directly and expressly conflicts with the decision from the Third District Court of Appeal in JOHNSON V. MT. SINAI MED CTR., INC., 615 SO.2d 257 (FLA. 3d DCA 1993). In fact, the District Court expressly noted that it "disagree[d] with the [JOHNSON] decision." Thus, there is express and direct conflict; this Court should exercise its jurisdiction to settle that conflict.

ARGUMENT

DISTRICT COURT'S OPINION DIRECTLY, EXPRESSLY AND ADMITTEDLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISION FROM THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN JOHNSON V. MT. SINAI MED CTR., INC., 615 SO.2D 257 (FLA. 3D DCA 1993), AND THIS COURT SHOULD THEREFORE EXERCISE ITSDISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO SETTLE CONFLICT.

The following unassailable facts are expressed on the face of the District Court's opinion. The trial court's order, which the District Court has quashed, was premised upon the Third District Court of Appeal's decision in JOHNSON v. MT. SINAI, <u>supra</u>. In quashing that order, the District Court expressly noted that it "disagree[d] with the [JOHNSON] decision." The District Court instead adopted the decisions in KIRKLAND v. MIDDLETON, 19 FLW D1213 (Fla. 5th DCA, Opinion issued June 3, 1994) and FRANKLIN v. NATIONWIDE MUTUAL FIRE INS. CO., 566 So.2d 529 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990), rev. dism'd, 574 So.2d 142 (Fla. 1990).

¹This Court currently has before it jurisdictional briefs filed by three of the Petitioners in the KIRKLAND case. Yogendra v. Kirkland, Case No.: 84,284; Frost v. Kirkland, Case No.: 84,286; and Pearlman v. Kirkland, Case No.: 84,287. In the interest of uniformity, and because we believe that the present case presents a much more compelling argument for Supreme Court jurisdiction, we would ask that this Court hold its determination on the jurisdictional issue on those cases until such time as the court decides whether to exercise jurisdiction in this case.

²We are aware that in their brief on jurisdiction the Respondents in the KIRKLAND case have suggested to this Court that it should not accept jurisdiction in KIRKLAND, because, among other reasons, this Court has recently "approved" the decision in FRANKLIN and has therefore already determined that Section 455.241(2) is both constitutional and does not allow any type of ex

This Court has jurisdiction over this case. <u>See</u>, **Florida**Constitution, Article V, Section 3(b)(3). <u>See generally</u>, JENKINS
v. STATE, 385 So.2d 1356 (Fla. 1980).

The graph of the graph

Even under the fairly stringent standards which the amendment to Article V, Section 3(b)(3) was intended to require, and which this Court discussed in JENKINS, the District Court's opinion conflicts with JOHNSON v. MT. SINAI, and this Court should exercise jurisdiction. The District Court clearly "represented in words" and "gave expression to" its disagreement with and rejection of JOHNSON v. MT. SINAI. And given the fact that the District Court quashed an order which was clearly authorized by JOHNSON v. MT. SINAI, it simply cannot be argued that the District Court's opinion is not in express and direct conflict with JOHNSON. Therefore, we respectfully request this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to settle the conflict.

In addition to the conflict, it is apparent from the decisions which have been issued by the various district courts of appeal that this is an issue of great public importance which ought to be

parte contact, even a JOHNSON type contact. See, ROJAS v. RYDER TRUCK RENTAL, INC., 19 FLW S4136 (Fla. Sup. Ct., September 1, 1994). We respectfully disagree with that position. It seems to us that this Court's reference in ROJAS to an approval of the FRANKLIN decision was simply the recognition that a court could not require (we believe that the Court's use of the word "authorize" was intended to mean "require") a party to sign a release allowing ex parte conference where the plaintiff otherwise did not wish to do so. That was the scenario presented in FRANKLIN, and that was the context in which FRANKLIN was discussed in this Court's opinion in ROJAS. This Court was not asked to interpret Section 455.241(2) in ROJAS, nor do we read this Court's opinion as having passed upon either the constitutionality or the applicability of that statute in any situation other than where a court has ordered a plaintiff to sign a release allowing such a conference.

addressed, once and for all, by the State's highest court. Both the District Court in this opinion and the Fifth District Court of Appeal in its opinion KIRKLAND v. MIDDLETON, supra, have made passing reference to "constitutional" arguments raised by the defendants in those cases, and have rejected those arguments, without any expression of the nature of the arguments themselves or the analysis utilized in rejecting those arguments. Therefore, a synopsis of those arguments is in order.

Indeed, before we reach the constitutional argument, there is a matter of well-defined statutory construction which separates the JOHNSON decision from the decisions rendered by other District Courts of Appeal when construing this particular statute. The statute is clearly in derogation of the common law, and should therefore be narrowly construed. See, STATE v. EGEN, 287 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1973); SOUTHERN ATTRACTIONS, INC. v. GRAU, 93 So.2d 120 (Fla. 1957); SULLIVAN v. LEATHERMAN, 48 So.2d 836 (Fla. 1950); ARIAS v. STATE FARM FIRE AND CASUALTY CO., 426 So.2d 1136 (Fla. 1st DCA 1983) (statute in derogation of common law must be strictly construed and will not be interpreted so as to displace common law further than is expressly declared)

The JOHNSON court, by refusing to hold that a one-way interview violated the statute took the correct approach to the statute in question. It construed the statute narrowly, and so as not to displace common law -- which would allow counsel for any party to litigation to speak freely off the record with any fact witness -- any further than was expressly declared by the statute

in question. By contrast, the other District Courts of Appeal have broadly construed Section §455.241(2) so as to prohibit any contact, including -- for heaven's sake -- the Fifth District's holding in KIRKLAND which precludes defense counsel from contacting treating physicians for purposes of setting depositions.

With respect to the constitutionality of the statute, we believe that the statute as construed by each of the District Courts other than the Third District represents an abridgment of all personal injury defendants' First Amendment rights to freedom of speech and association, and likewise infringes upon those rights held by the treating physicians in question.

Furthermore, the statute is unconstitutional because it infringes upon the rule making function of this Court. Under this Court's articulated distinction between substantive and procedural matters, see, HAVEN FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOC. v. KIRIAN, 579 So.2d 730 (Fla. 1991), the statute clearly falls within the procedural realm where this Court has supreme authority. That is because the statute does not really create a privilege, as the "privilege" evaporates the moment that a subpoena is served or a witness is sworn in at a deposition. All that the statute does is regulate "the method of conducting litigation involving rights and corresponding defenses." KIRIAN, 579 So.2d at 732. There is no evidentiary physician/patient privilege, and the evaporating "privilege" that is purportedly created by the statute is really no privilege at all. The statute is unconstitutional because it represents a legislative encroachment into the machinery of the

judiciary. The statute should be held to be unconstitutional.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, and because the Second District Court of Appeal has expressly created conflict with the Third District Court of Appeal's decision in JOHNSON v. MT. SINAI, the Petitioners RUDOLPH ACOSTA, M.D. and RUDOLPH ACOSTA, M.D. P.A. respectfully request this Court to exercise jurisdiction over this matter.

STEPHENS, LYNN, KLEIN & McN1CHOLAS, P.A.
Attorneys for Acosta
Two Datran Center, PH2
9130 S. Dadeland Boulevard
Miami, Florida 33156
Telephone: (305) 670-3700

Bv:

PHILIP D. PARRISH, ESQ.