THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

Case No. 84,413

SECOND DCA CASE NO .: 94-1017

L.T. CASE NO.: 92-7197 (DIV. H)

RUDOLPH ACOSTA, M.D.,

Petitioner,

VS.

NANCY RICHTER & GARY RICHTER,

original

Respondents.

RESPONDENTS' JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

KENNETH S. SPIEGELMAN, ESQ. Fla. Bar No. 0894664 GROVER, WEINSTEIN, STAUBER, & FRIEDMAN, P.A. Attorneys for Respondents 777 Arthur Godfrey Rd. 2d Floor Miami Beach, FL 33140 (305) 673-3000

FILED

SID J WHITE

OCT 18 1994

CLERK_SUPREME COURT By Chief Deputy Clerk

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Respondents acknowledge the majority of the STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS as filed by the Petitioner, ACOSTA. This is a discovery matter in which the Second District Court of Appeals quashed a trial court order which improperly allowed the attorneys for the Petitioners to hold unsupervised, <u>ex parte</u> conferences with the RICHTERs' treating physicians.

The RICHTERs' petition for writ of certiorari was granted by the Second District Court of Appeals.¹ <u>Richter v. Acosta, et al.</u>, 19 FLW D1817 (Fla. 2d DCA August 24, 1994). Subsequent thereto, ACOSTA filed his notice of discretionary jurisdiction with this Court and filed his Brief on Jurisdiction. Several days later, ACOSTA filed his Amended Jurisdictional Brief. This Brief follows.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The opinion of the Second District Court of Appeal was correct and constitutional. It neither expressly nor directly conflicts with the Third District Court of Appeals decision in <u>Johnson v. Mt. Sinai Med. Ctr., Inc.</u>, 615 So. 2d 257 (Fla. 3d DCA 1993). As such, this Court should, most respectfully, decline to exercise jurisdiction over this matter.

¹The Second District Court of Appeals noted that none of the waivers of privilege, which would otherwise allow such a conference under F.S. 455.241 (2), were present in the underlying case.

ARGUMENT

THERE IS NO EXPRESS OR DIRECT CONFLICT BETWEEN THIS CASE AND THE DECISION OF THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS IN JOHNSON.

The Petitioner argues that the language used by the Second District in stating that it "disagree[d] with the [Johnson] decision" establishes an express conflict with the Johnson decision. However, a closer examination of the two decisions demonstrates that they are not, in fact, in conflict. Indeed, the Second District has, in actuality, only ruled in accordance with what was actually the apparent intent of the Third District in Johnson. That is, that there may be <u>no conversations</u> between the attorneys for the Defendant and the plaintiff's treating physicians.²

The <u>Johnson</u> decision still does not allow the physician to speak to the Defendant's attorneys. It is likely that the reason for this is the fear that discussions concerning prohibited, privileged matters will still take place. Indeed, that was clearly the logic behind the decision in this case, as evidenced by the Second District's statement that:

We see no reason to require treating physicians to listen and not respond to an attorney, who is not their attorney, about their professional responsibilities. Furthermore, to the extent that the Court in Johnson approves an <u>ex parte</u>,

5

²To that extent, the Third District's decision (<u>Johnson</u>) appears to be an anomaly since it only, apparently, allows a lawyer's soliloquy while the physician remains absolutely silent.

unsupervised interview with treating physicians where the patient's attorney cannot be present to protect against disclosure of privileged information, we disagree³ with the decision.

Richter, 19 FLW D1817.

Furthermore, ACOSTA's arguments that F.S. 455.241(2) is unconstitutional are moot. This Court, in <u>Rojas v. Ryder Truck Rental, Inc.</u>, 19 FLW S4136 (Fla. September 1, 1994), already approved the decision of the First District in <u>Franklin v. Nationwide</u> <u>Mutual Fire Ins. Co.</u>, 566 So. 2d 529 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990), rev. dism'd. 574 So. 2d 142 (Fla. 1990), and has, therefore, implicitly ruled that the statute is constitutional. Notwithstanding the creatively manufactured arguments of ACOSTA is Footnote 2 of his brief, the underlying statute is, by previous ruling of this Court, constitutional. <u>See also</u>, Phillips v. Ficarra, 616 So. 2d 312 (Fla. 4th DCA 1993).

In addition, ACOSTA's arguments concerning the alleged unconstitutionality of the statute due to supposed violations of the distinction between substantive and procedural matters are also misplaced. F.S. 455.241 (2) exists to regulate the confidentiality of the relationship between physician and patient. To that end, and since the statute is in accordance with Court Rules, most specifically Rule 1.360, Fla. R. Civ. P., and the rules governing production, discovery and deposition, it is, therefore, constitutional. <u>See, e.g.</u>, Van Bibber v. Hartford Accident & Indemnity Ins. Co., 439 So. 2d 880 (Fla. 1983).

There is, most respectfully, absolutely no "legislative encroachment into the

³Again, it is respectfully submitted, that simple "disagreement" does not indicate "express" conflict. The Third District Court of Appeals is still not authorizing actual conferences between defense counsel and the plaintiff's treating physicians, similar to how the Second District ruled.

machinery of the judiciary" as ACOSTA so freely, and without substantiation, asserts. There is only a constitutional legislative effort to strengthen the crucial confidential nature of the relationship between the physician and the patient. For the legislature to have acted otherwise would have had a chilling effect on the relationship between physician and patient, and would violate the sanctity of the confidential relationship sought to be protected under F.S. 455.241 (2).

CONCLUSION

In light of the fact that there is no express or direct conflict between the underlying decision and <u>Johnson</u>, and because F.S. 455.241 (2) is constitutional, this Court should, most respectfully, decline to assert jurisdiction over this matter.⁴

KENNETH S. SPIEGELMAN, ESQ. Grover, Weinstein, Stauber, & Friedman, Esq. 777 Arthur Godfrey Rd. 2d Floor Miami Beach, FL 33140 (305) 673-3000 Attorneys for Respondents

⁴ACOSTA also makes a passing reference to an argument that this case raises a question of great public importance. ACOSTA raises this point without any legal support. It should be similarly discounted by this Court as lacking any legal foundation.